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lndependent Auditor's Reoort

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Commission
The City of Vernon, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business{ype
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Vernon, Texas (City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Business Development Corporation of Vernon, the City's discretely presented
component unit. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented component unit, is
based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.



Opinions

ln our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Vernon, Texas as of September 30, 2017, and the respective changes
in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the
General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Req u i red S u pp le me nta ry I nformatio n

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Texas
Municipal Retirement System, and the Schedule of Contributions - Texas Municipal Retirement System
identified as Required Supplementary lnformation in the table of contents be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

,q {

-YC,*: fu"t ,?cñ hl,,,,w t
EDGIN, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FLEMING, PC

Wichita Falls, Texas
March 7,2018
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Vernon, Texas, we offer readers of the City's Annual Financial Report this narrative
overview and analysis of the City's financial performance during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. Please
read it in conjunction with the City's financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

a The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $24,706,883 (net position). Of this amount, $3,585,290
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City's obligations.

During the year, the City's total net position increased by $2,826,093.

The governmental funds reported a fund balance this year of $5,37'l ,1 50, which is an increase of $1 ,205,476 in
comparison with the prior year amount of $4,165,674 o¡ 28.89%. Of this total fund balance, $1,387,616 is
available for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned fund balance).

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund and all other Governmental
Funds was $1,387,616. $3,983,534 of the total Governmental Funds fund balances are either restricted,
committed or nonspendable.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Figure A-1
Requited Components of the City's

_ _ 4,St'!r_u!_Eiqagç!a[ $eportThis annual report consists of three parts-management's discussion and
analysis (this section), the öaslc financial statements, and rcquircd
supplementary information The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the City:

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

The first two statements are govemment-wide financial sfafemenfs
that provide bolh long-term and shotl-term information about the
City's overall financial status.

Basic
Financial

Stalements

Requ¡red

Supplementary
lnformat¡on

The remaining statements are fund financial statemenfs that focus on
individual pafts of the government, reporting the City's operations in
more detail than the government-wide statements.

The govemmental funds statements tell how general govemment
services were financed in the shott-term as well as what remains for
future spending.

The proprietary fund statements offer shorf- and long-term financial
information about the activities the government operates Íke
öusrnesses, such as the water and sewer system.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the
information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data. The
statements are followed by a section of requircd supplementary information
that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.
Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of this annual report are arranged Summary
and related to one another.
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Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the City's
government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of
management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Figure A-2. Major Features of the City's Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements
of Statements

the operates
Scope similar to private businesses -

the water and sewer system

a

o Statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in
net position

o Statement of cash flows

Required financial
sfafements

Accounting basis
and measurement
focus

Type of
asseVliability
information

Type of
inflow/outflow
information

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital, and
short-term and long-term

revenues and
expenses during year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar to
those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the government's assets and
liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the City's net position and how they have changed. Net position-the
difference between the City's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources-¡s
one way to measure the City's financial health or posrÏron.

Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating, respectively.

To assess the overall health of the City, one needs to consider additional non-financial factors such as changes
in the City's tax base.

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into three categories:

Govemmental activities. Most of the City's basic services are included here, such as the fire department, law
enforcement, street department, parks services, the City cemetery, animal control and general administration.

Eusrness-fype activities. The City charges fees to customers to help it cover the cost of certain services it
provides. The City's water, sewer and sanitation system are included here.

Component Unlfs. The City includes one other entity in its report - the Business Development Corporation of
Vernon. Although legally separate, this "component unit" is important because the City is financially accountable
for it.

a

a

a

a

a
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Government-wide Governmental Funds
Entire City's government
(except fiduciary funds)
and the City's component
units

The activities of the City
that are not proprietary or
fiduciary

o Statement of net oosition o Balance sheet
o Statement of activities o Statement of revenues,

expenditures & changes
in fund balances

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Modified accrual
accounting and current
fi nancial resources focus

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
short-term and long{erm

Only assets expected to
be used up and liabilities
that come due during the
year or soon thereafter,
no caoital assets included

All revenues and
expenses during year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

Revenues for which cash
is received during or soon
after the end of the year;
expenditures when goods
or servicæs have been
received and payment is
due during the year or
soon thereafter



Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds-not the Cig
as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending
for particular purposes.

Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

The City Commission establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show
that it is properly using certain taxes and grants.

The City has the following kinds of funds:

Govemmental funds-Most of the City's basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1)
how cash and other frnancrþl assefs that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances
left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a
detailed sho¡t-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. Because this information does not encompass the
additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom
of the governmental funds statement, or on the subsequent page, that explain the relationship (or differences)
between them.

Propríetary funds-Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long- and short-term financial
information. ln fact, the City's proprietary funds are the same as its business-type activities, but provide more
detail and information, such as cash flows.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Net position. The City's combined net position was $24,706,883 at September 30,2017. (See Table A-1)
Table A-l

C¡ty's l,let Posit¡on

a

a

a

o

GovernÍEntal

Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

20'17 2016 2017 201 6 2017 2016
GJrrent and other assets

Capital assets, net

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

related to pension phn

Defered loss on refunding debt

Total deferred outflows of resources

Current and other liabilities

Long{erm l¡abilities

Total liabil¡ties

tÞferred inflows of resources

related to pension plan

l¡et assets

¡¡et investÍEnt in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestr¡cted

Total net assets

s 7,252,134

6,388,444

8 6,287,451 S 4,275,487

6,431,854 17,717,838

$ 3,114,049

17,848,910

I't1,527,621
24,106,282

$ 9,401,s00

24,280,764
13,640,578 12,719,305 21,993,325 20,9ô2,959 35,633,903 33,6A2,264

1,056,019 1,391,222 303,953

260,962

378,330

275,061

1,359,972

260,962

1,769,552

27s,061
1,056,019 1,391,222 564,915 653,391 1,620,934 2,044,613
'1,033,859

4,262,639

't,338,473

4,536,212

1,161,787

5,619,453

1,193,882

6,328,369

2,'195,646

9,882,092

2,532,355

10,864,581

5,296,498 5,874,685 6,741240 7,522,251 12,077,738 13,396,936

365,123 353,122 105,093 96,028 470,216 449,150

4,392,504 4,311,1U 11,788,776

3,909,446 3,592,862 1,030,867

733,026 (21,276) 2,852,264

$ 9,034,976 S 7,882,720 $ 15,671,907

1',|,614,579

547,256

1,836,236

16,181,280

4,940,313

3,585,290

15,925,713

4,140 j1A
1,814,960

$ 13,998,071 $ 24,706,883 $ 21,880,791

The $3,585,290 of unrestricted net position at September 30,2017 represents resources available to fund the programs
of the City next year, if sufficient resources are not derived from future resources. The restricted net position is required
to be set aside for long-term debt, public improvements and various other activities.

Changes in net position. The City's total revenues, both program and general, werefi14,222,142. Asignificant portion,
66%, of the City's revenue comes from charges for services. (See Figure A-3.) Less than 1% comes from operating
and capital grants and contributions, 8% comes from sales taxes, 16% from property taxes and 4o/oÍrom franchise fees.
Other minor categories combined make up 4o/o of lhe City's total revenues.
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The total cost of all programs and services was $1 1,396,049, 45o/o of these costs are for water, sewer and sanitation
related expenses. The City's expenses cover a range of services, with 30% related to public safety, 6% for public works,
5o/o for cemetery, 1o/o for Economic Development and Other, 5o/o Íor Subsidies, Donations and other, and 7o/o general
government. (See Figure A-4.)

Figure A-3
Source of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2017

o HotelOæupancyTâx
t SalêsTaxes

80/o

I Franchisêfees
40/.

¡ Grants and Contr¡butions
10/.

o Miscellaneous
20Â

E Charges for Serv¡cos
660/6

o Water, Sewsr and San¡tat¡on

Figure A-4
Functional Expense for Fiscal Year 2017

¡ Economic Development
1o/o

o Subs¡d¡es, Donâtions and Other
50/o

and Parks

r Public Works

Olher

6

I General Government
70/.

I Publ¡c Safety
30vo



Governmental Activities

Table A-2 presents the various revenue categories and gross costs of each of the City's functional areas for the current
year.

Table A-2

Ghanges in Net Position

Governnental

Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues

ftogram revenues

Charges for services

Operating and capital grants

Capital grants and contributions

General revenues

Property taxes

Saþs taxes

Franchise fees

Other taxes

lnvestnent earnings

lVlscellaneous

Total revenues

$ 1,480,869

90,778

8,200

$ 1,452,232

233,124

38,873

$ 7,e30,8e6 $ 7,831,30e * r.llí?l

- 8,200

$ 9,283,s41

233,124

38,873

2,317,784

1,190,411

522,161

320,651

8l,575

188,015

2,232,927

1,166,866

546,074

333,853

60,226

125,698

46,847

43,955

'16,593

57,174

2,317,784

1190,411

522,161

320,651

128,422

231,970

2,232,927

1,'t66,866

546,074

333,853

76,8't9

't82,872

6,200,444 6,189,873 8,021,698 7,905,076 14,222,142 14,094,949

Rpenses

General governnent

tublic safety

R¡blic w orks

Cenetery and parks

Subsidies, donations, and other

Christncs decorations

Civic and cultural

Economic developnent

lnterest

Water, sewer and sanitation

Total expenses

Transfers

826,713

3,376,639

713,701

547,246

518,678

5,718

170í02
84,867

60,363

443,555

2,073,905

474,346

396,653

442,607

4,673

284,454

113J04

66,642

57,177

826,713

3,376,639

713,701

547,246

518,678

5,718

170,402

84,867

60,363

5,091,722

443,555

2,073,905

474,y6
396,653

442,607

4,673

284,454
't13,104

66,642

4,637,676

8,937,615

5,091,722 4,580,499

6,304,327 4,357,116 5,091,722 4,580,499 11,396,049

1,256,139 724,033 (1,256,139) (724,033)

Change in net position 1,152,256 2,556,790 1,673,837 2,600,544 2,826,093 5,157,334

l,let position - beginning

(as originally stated)

Rior period adjustnent

l,let position - beginning

(as restated)

7 ,882,720 5,325,930 13,998,070 11 ,397 ,527 21 ,880,790 16,723,457

7,882,720 5,325,930 13,998,070 11,397,527 21,880,790 16,723,457

$ 9,034,976 S 7,882,720 $ 15,671,907 $ 13,998,071 $24,706,S83 $ 21,880,791

7
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The most significant fluctuation between years relates to the following:

. Charges for Services increased by $128,224, which is due to increased usage.
o Capital Grants and Contributions decreased $173,019 due to 2016 having a fire equipment grant in amount

of $136,147.
o Property tax increased $84,857 due to both a increase in the taxable values and a small increase in M&O

rates.
. Expenses increased overall by 92,458,4U primarily due to a negative pension cost in 2O16 ol $2,514,282.

Table A-3 presents the cost of each of the City's largest functions as well as each function's net cost (total cost less
fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what was funded by state revenues,
as well as local tax dollars.

The cost ol all govemmenfal activities this year was $6,304,327; however, the amount that our taxpayers paid
for these activities through property taxes was $2,317,784.

Some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs through charges for services of
$1,480,869.

l,let Cost of Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services fbt Cost of Services

2017 2016 2017 2016

a

a

General governnrent

R:blic safeÇ

Rrblic w orks

Cenetery and parks

Economic developnent

Subsidies, donations and other

Christrnas decorations

Civic and cultural

lnterest

Bond issuance cost

Total

$ 826,713

3,376,639

713,701

547,246

84,867

518,678

5,718

170,402

60,363

$ 443,555

2,073,905

474,U6

396,653

113,104

442,607

4,673

284,454

66,642

57,177

$ 645,828 $

2,255,396

683,946

324,783

84,867

498,391

504

170,402

60,363

303,195

781,232

441,653

166,239

113,104

420,316

(1,125)

284,4U

66,642

57,177

$ 6,304,327 $ 4,357,116 S 4,724,480 $ 2,632,887

FINANGIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

Revenues from governmental funds totaled $6,219,862, an increase of $60,368 or 1o/o. The largest increase was an
increase in property taxes of 9111,246 or 5%. Grants and donations decreased $1 73,019 or 640/o.

Expenditures from governmental funds totaled $6,286,1 15, a decrease of $177,001 or 3%. The largest decrease was
in civic and culture, a decrease of $114,052 or 4O%o. The second largest decrease was in public safety, which was a
decrease of $80,980 or 3Yo. This was mostly due to having less full{ime employees. Transfers to the general fund
increased by $564,053 or 460/o.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the prior year, the City's cash flow greatly improved due to continued strong minimum utility rates, a lowered
retirement contribution rate to TMRS (Texas Municipal Retirement System) and continued operational expenditure
deferrals, including street maintenance and sewer-plant renovation needs. Prior year staff reductions were also held in
place, and City Halls' furlough to a 36-hour work week was in place for part of the year.

Property tax revenue increased due to higher tax values and rates. Franchise tax revenue declined slightly with less
heating gas sold in prior year's winter. Sales tax increased slightly, mostly due to utility and windmill construction in the
area. Water revenue increased due to strong minimum monthly bill rates to more align fixed costs to fixed revenues.

I



CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

GapitalAssets

At September 30,2017, the City had invested in a broad range of capital assets totaling $23,596,880, including land,
equipment, buildings, and vehicles. (See Table A-4.)

Table A-4
Capita I Assets lrlet of Acc um ulated Deprec iation

Gorernmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Land $ 981,029
Buildings and improrcments 1,418,154
lnfrastructure 2,538,692
Equipment,turniture,fixtures 563,678
Vehicles 805,201

$ 981,029
1,465,713
2,596,470

6s1,900
736,742

$ 721,690
16,211,607

$ 721,690 $
16,813,053

304,350
9,817

1,702,719
17,629,761
2,s38,692

887,789
837,919

$ 1,702,719
18,278,766
2,596,470

9s6,250
746,559

324,111
32,718

Total netassets $6,306,754 $6,431 ,854 $17,29O,126 $ 17,848,910 $23,s96,880 524,280,764

More detailed information about the City's capital assets is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

For the City's fiscal year 2O18, the City plans capital additions including

GENERAL

Street Seal Ooat & Repairs

fulice Cars

El,íS ( Cot for Anbulance)

Èrks - Conrn¡nity Garden

Solid Waste Dsposal (Derno Gibsons Building)

Total

ENTERPRSE

Water Sourceing/lnf rastructure

Bulk Water R¡rchases

Water Departnent l-lydraulic Unit & Conpressor

Water lVbins

WaterWells

Wastewater lnfluent funps &VFD

Wastewater SCADA

Total

$ 400,240

69,018

25,000

10,000

245,000

$ 749,258

$ 314,000

125,000

39,000

90,000

78,000

150,000

25,000

9

$ 821,000



Long-term Obligations

At September3O,2017, the City had $7,819,293 in bonds, compensated absences, and leases outstanding as shown
in Table A-5. More detailed information about the City's long{erm obligations is presented in the notes to the financial
statements.

Standard & Poot's had assigned a credit rating of A for the City's General Obligation Bonds.

Table A-5

Long-term Obligations

Governnental

Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Certificates of obligation

C.ap¡tal leases

llotes payable

Conpensated absences

Revenue bonds

$ 1,129,585

321,166

463,499

306,976

$ 1,155,162

460,566

504,992

282,526

$ $ $ $

143,533

96,717

5,357,817

8,548

180,160

88,370

6,0,r'.5,624

I,1 29,585

321,166

607,032

403,693

5,357,817

1,155j62
469,114

685,152

370,896

6,045,624

Total $ 2,221,226 $ 2,403,246 $ 5,598,067 $ 6,322,702 $ 7,819,293 $ 8,725,%8

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

Increases/Decreases in Revenue

ln the General Fund, total budgeted revenues decreased by $114,026 from2017 actual revenues. The largest decrease
was the budgeted contracts for fire and ambulance which decreased $183,873 or loÙo/o. Transfers in increased
$363,356. Property tax revenue budgeted for 2018 was materially the same amount as budgeted for 2017, with a
decrease of all property tax revenue of $14,380 or less than 1%.The2017 rale is $0.38794 per 9100 of taxable property
value for Maintenance and Operation and $.1 7677 for the lnterest and Sinking Fund. Combined, the rate is above the
effective tax rate

ln the Debt Service Fund, the 2017 tax rate is 9.17677 per 9100 of taxable property value. The total amount of municipal
debt secured by property taxes is $665,499.

ln the Enterprise Fund, revenues were decreased by $168,930 or 2o/ofrom2017 actual revenues. Water revenues were
decreased $98,187 or 2.5Yo.

Decreases/lncreases in Expenditures

General Fund expenditures were increased by $'t,111,090 or 20.0o/ofrom the actual 2017 expenditures.

Debt Service Fund expenditures decreased $55,882 or 100o/o.

ln the Enterprise Fund, expenses were increased by $409,507 or 60/o lrom 2017 actual expenditures. The majority of
the 2018 increase is due to a $417,030 increase in transfers out and in lieu payments.

The adopted budget shows an increase of $-0- in General Fund Balance and $523,049 in the Utility (Enterprise) Fund
for a total, if realized, of a $523,049 increase in the City's net position for fiscal-year ending 2018.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest in the
government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information, should be addressed to the City's Administration Office.
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EXHIB¡T A-1

THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30,2017

Primary Government
Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities

81,690
981,029

5,325,725

o

(703,214)

450

427,712
721,690

16,568,436

707,616
386,961

157,568

307,293
32,353

175,057

30,000
90,522

509,402
1,702,719

21,894,161

Component
Unit

$ 1,075,067

'103,364

422,247

110,336
206,273

Total
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Due from primary government

Customers (net)

Ambulance (net)
Property taxes (net)

Sales taxes
Hotel occupancy taxes

Franchise fees
Grants
Other

lnternal balances
Due from fiduciaries
Other assets
Assets held for sale

Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated (net)
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension plan related
Deferred loss on refunding debt

Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Taxes payable

Due to component unit

Due to others
Accrued interest payable

Unearned revenues
Customer deposits
Long{erm liabilities:

Portion due or payable within one year
Portion due or payable after one year

Net pension liability

Total liabilities

Deferred lnflows of Resources
Pension plan related

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

$ s,324,998 $ 4,270,626 $ 9,s9s,624

707,616
386,961

157,559
307,293
32,3s3

175,057

30,000
90,522

703,214
44,177 44,177

450

13,640,578 21.993.325 3s,633,903 1,917,287

1,0s6,019 303.953 1,359,972

260 962 260 962
1 ,056,0't9 564,915 1,620,934

175,571

1,127

103,364
1,279

10,249

742,269
1,478,957

162,3s9
8,991

7,191
1 1,486

'191 ,91 I

337,930
10,118

103,364

1,279

17,440
11,486

1 91 ,919

779,841
4,818,226

801,227

1,522,110
6,297j83
3,s84,909

163,942
1,292,046

2, 783,682
5,296,498 6,781,240 12,077,738 1,455,988

365, I 23 105,093 470,216

4,392,504
3,909,446

733,026

$ 9,034,976

11,788,776
1,030,867

16181,280
4,940,313

316,608

144,6912, 852,264

$ 1s,671 ,907 $ 24,706,883 $ 461 ,299

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017

Prooram Revenues

Expenses
Charges for

Services

Operating

Grants and
Contributions

Capital

Grants and

ContributionsFunctions/Programs
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government

Public safety
Public works

Gemetery and parks

Subsidies, donations and other
Christmas decorations
Civic and cultural
Economic development
lnterest expense

Total governmental activ¡ties
Business{ype activities:

Water
Sewer
Senitation

Other
Total business-type activities

Total primary government
5,091,722 7,930,896

T-î1,3-e6-^oA- J s-;¿i1r6-s T--5dñ-:::

$ 826,713
3,376,639

713,701

547,246
518,678

5,718
170,402
84,867

60,363

$ 180,78s

1,070,235
29,755

179,807

20,287

$ 100

51,008

34,456

5,214

8,200

$

1,480,869 90,778 8,200

2,060,478
1,0s5,399

1,634,234
341 611

3,804,265
2,359,736
1,573,662

't93,233

$ 8,200

Component unit:
Business Development Corporation of Vernon

General revenues and transfers:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes

Property taxes, lev¡ed for debt service purposes

Franchise fees

Sales taxes
Hotel occupancy texes
Other taxes

lnterest earnings
Miscellaneous

Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

$ 330,885 $ 25,500 $

See accompanying notes to the basic financ¡at statements.
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EXHIBIT A-2

Net (Expense) Revenue and Chanqes in Net Position
Primarv Government

Governmental

Activities
Business{ype

Activities Total
Component

Unit

$ (645,828)

(2,255,396)

(683,946)

(324,783)
(498,3e1)

(s04)
('t70,402)

(84,867)

(60,363)

(64s,828)
(2,2s5,396)

(683,s46)
(324,783)
(4e8,3er )

(504)

(170,402)
(84,867)

(60,363)

$ $ $

4.724 ,480) ø 724,480\

1,743,787

1,304,337
(60,572)

1,743,787

1,304,337
(60,572)

(148,378)('t48,378)

(4,724,480) 2,839,174
2,839,174 2,839,174

(1,885,306)

(30s,385)

't,597,753

720,031

522,'t6'l
1,190,411

314,184
6,467

81,575
188,015

1 ,256,1 39

46,847

43,955
(1 ,256,1 39)

1,597,753
720,031

522,161
't,'190,41'l

314,184
6,467

128,422

23't,970

595,206

2,483
2,946

5,876,736 (1,165,337)

1,673,837

13,998,070

4,711,399 600 635

1j52256

7 882 720

2,826,093

21,880,790

295,250

166,049

$ 9,034,976 $ 1s,671 ,907 $ 24,706,883 $ 461,299



EXHIBIT A-3

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Ambulance (net)
Property taxes (net)
Sales taxes
Franchise fees
Hotel occupancy taxes
Grants
Other

Due from other funds
Restricted assels:

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Taxes payable
Due to other funds
Due to component unit
Due to others

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenues

Fund balances:
Reslricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30,2017

386,961
122,384
307,293

57,242

90,522
'103,924

81,690
$ 2,208,896

$ 66,925
1,127
3,768

103,364

$ 275,179

Other
Governmental

32,353
30,000

1.068

$

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 70,210
1j27

41 ,046
103,364

1,279
217,026

Debt
Service

Fund

Electr¡c
Trust

PrincipalGeneral

$ 1,058,880 $ 240,004 $ 2,861,641 $ 632,692 $ 4,793,2't7

35,1 75
386,961
157,559
307,293
57,242
32,353
30,000
90,522

104,992

-

-q-?'8619!- -$-999¡-q- F 6F41.82t

$ $ 3,285

37,278

1,279
175,184

420,012

151 ,996
74,088

1,387,616
1 ,613,700

$ 2,208,896

41 842

33,641 453,653

241,538 2,861,641

241,538 2,861,641

654,271 3,909,446
74,088

1 ,387,616
654,271 5,371 ,1 50

$ 275,179 $ 2,861,641 s 696,1 't 3 $ 6,041,829

See accompanying nofes to the basic financial statements.
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30,2OI7

Total fund balances - governmental funds (Exhibit A-3)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A-1)
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore not
reported in the funds. Capital assets at year-end consist of:

Gross capital assets
Related accumulated depreciation

$ 10,643,258

EXHIBIT A4

$ 5,371,150

4 504 6,306,754

150,812

302,841

117,815

1,006,094
123,491
321,166
463,499
306 976 (2,221,226)

(10,249)

1,056,019
(2,783,682)

(365,123) (2,092,786)

109 865

Property taxes receivable are not available to pay for current period expenditures and
therefore are deferred inflows of resources in the funds.

Ambulance fees receivable are not available to pay for current period expenditures and
therefore are deferred inflows of resources in the funds.

Franchise fees receivables are only recognized at the fund level when they are measurable
and available within 60 days of year-end. Franchise fees receivables are recognized as they
are earned at the government-wide level.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Bonds payable
Bonds premiums
Capital leases
Notes payable
Compensated absences

lnterest payable on long-term debt is not due and payable in the current period and
therefore not reported as liabilities in the funds. Accrued interest at year-end was:

The City's net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows related to its
participation in the Texas Municipal Retirement System do not meet criteria to be
reported in the governmental funds financial statements. These items consist of:

Deferred outflows of resources - pension plan related
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources - pension plan related

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in the governmental
activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Total net position - governmental activities (Exhibit A-1)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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EXH¡BIT 4.5

Revenues
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Sales taxes
Hotel occupancy taxes
Other taxes
Licenses and permits

Cemetery ¡ncome

Contracts
Swimming pool

Ambulance service
Administrative charges to other funds
Fines and fees
Grants and donations
lnvestment earn¡ngs
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Public works
Cemetery and parks

Subsidies, donations and other
Christmas decorations
Civic and cultural
Economic development
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
lnterest charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of perpetual care spaces
Transfers in

Transfers out
Total other f¡nancing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - beg¡nning

Fund balances - ending

THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2017

General
Debt

Service

Electric
Trust

Principal
Other

Governmental

$-

314,'t84

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 1,595,480
548,455

1,190,411

6,467
16,566
69,025

183,873
83,323

789,901

252,095
121 ,890

100

14,717

172,486

$ 710,164 $

3,463
3,604

$ 2,305,644
548,455

1,'t90,411
314,184

6,467
16,566
69,025

183,873
83,323

789,901

252,O95
126,378
98,978
57,702

176,860
32.917

4,488
98,878

6,605
770

5,044,789 717,23'l 32,917

18,906

424,925 6,219,862

786,894
3,O52,263

629,418
491,020
518,678

219,425

180,893

8,175
42,745

5,718
170,402
84,867

8,200

795,069
3,095,008

629,4',18

491,O20

518,678
5,718

170,402
84,867

227,625

31 535 36 976

199,799
68,511

5,910,126

(865,337)

55,882 320 107 6,286,1 1 5

661,349 32,917 104,818 (66,253)

11,435

1,787 ,097
(8,72s) (468,555) (23,274)

4,155

(30,400)

11,435
4,155

1,787,097
(530,958)

1,789,803 (468,555) (23,274\ (26,245',) 1,271 ,729

924,466

689,234

192,794

48,744

9,643

2,851,998

78,573

575,698

1,205,476

4,165,674

$ 1,613,700 $ 241 ,538 $ 2,861,641 $ 654,271 $ 5,371,150

See accompanying notes to the basic f¡nanc¡al statements
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017

$ 227,625
352,445

EXHIBIT A-6

$ 1,205,476

(124,820\

(280)

(58,601)

199,799

1,477

(24,450)

6,671

(8e,880)

36 864

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit A-5)

Amounts reported lor governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit A-2)
are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their est¡mated useful l¡ves as
depreciation expense. The net difference between the two is as follows:

Capital outlay during the year
Depreciation expense for the year

The net book value of the capital assets disposed of during the year are not applied against the
related proceeds in the governmental funds. However, they are in the governmental activities. The
the net book value of the cap¡tal assets disposed of during the year was:

Because certa¡n rece¡vables will not be collected for several months after the City's fiscal year
ends, they are not considered 'available' revenues and are deferred in the governmental funds.
The deferred inflow portions changed by these amounts this year:

Property taxes
Ambulance fees
Franchise fees

Repayment of long{erm debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long{erm liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Principal payments
during the year were:

Bonds payable
Notes payable
Capital leases payable

Accrued interest payable from the beginning of the year to the end of the year changed by:

Compensated absences are reported as the amount is earned in the Statement of Activities,
but as paid in the governmental funds. During the year, the liability changed by:

The amortization of the bond premium for the year was

The City participates in an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. Contributions
to the plan are expenditures at the fund level when payments are due. At the government-w¡de
level, pension expenses are recognized on an actuarial basis. Payments were less than the
actuarial expense in the current year.

The internal service funds' activities related to the General Fund are included in the Statement of
Activities of the governmental activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A-2)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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12,140
(44,447)
(26,294)

18,906
41,493

139,400

$ 1,'152,256



EXHIBIT A-7

THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2017

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Customers (net)
Property taxes (net)

Due from other funds
Other assets
Note receivable, current port¡on
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Long-term assets:
Note receivable, net of current portion
Capital assets not be¡ng depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated (net)

Total long-term assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension plan related
Deferred loss on refunding debt

Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Taxes payable
Due to other funds
Accrued ¡nterest payable
Unearned revenues
Customer deposits
Current maturities of long{erm obligations

Total current liabilities

Long{erm liabilities:
Long{erm obligations, less current maturities
Net pension liability

Total long{erm liabilities

Total liabilities

Defer¡ed lnflows of Resources:
Pens¡on plan related

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net pos¡tion

Reconciliation to government-wide statement of net position:
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of the lnternal Service Funds'
activities related to the Enterprise Fund
Net position of business-type act¡vities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial sfaternenfs.

Enterprise
Fund

Ut¡lity
Fund

$ 4,270,626

707,616
9

29,654
450

427,712
5,436,067

721 ,690
16,568,436
17,290,126

22,726,193

303,953
260,962
564,915

lnternal
Service
Funds

$ 531,781

6,389
88,726

626,896

695,400

695,400

1,322,296

105,361

45,431

150 792

150,792

1,17't,504
-S-i771,5-04-

162,359
8,991
3,992

13,580
11,486

1 91 ,919
868,567

r,260,894

5,513,626
801,227

6,314,853

7,575,747

105,093

11,788,776
1,030,867
2,790,625

15,610,268

61,639
$ 15,671 ,907
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EXHIBIT A-8

THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Operating revenues:
Water revenues
Sewer revenues
Sanitation revenues
Charges and fees
Late fees
Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Billing and collection
Water
Sewer
Sanitation
lnsurance claims and related
Bad debts
Depreciation
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

lnterest income
Rent income
Bad debt recoveries
lnterest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

lncome before transfers

Transfers in

Transfers out
Net transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Reconciliation to government-wide statement of activities:
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of the lnternal Service

Funds' activities related to the Enterprise Fund
Change in net position of the business-type activities

Enterprise
Fund

Utility
Fund

$ 3,802,084
2,358,489
1,573,453

137,518
55 087

926 631

255,247
1,541,068

733,072
1,527,544

106,477
693,180

46,994
4,903,582

3,023,049

lnternal
Service
Funds

$

905,689

7 905,689

888,433

888,433

17,256

46,847
30,975
12,980

(188,140)

23,873

(97,338)

2,925,71',!

477,284
(1,733,423)
(1,256,139)

1,669,572

13,940,696

4,265
$ 1,673,837

41,129

1,130,375

23,873

41 129

15,610,268 $ 1,171,504

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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EXHIBIT A-9

THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Received from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments to cla¡mants/beneficiar¡es

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Change in customer deposits
Bad debt recoveries
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Net cash used by noncapital f¡nancing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Pr¡nc¡pal paid on long-term debt
lnterest paid on long{erm debt

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Principal payments on note receivable
lnterest on investments
Rents received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net lncrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating lncome to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by operating activit¡es:
Depreciation
Amortization
(lncrease) decrease in current assets and deferred outflows of resources:

Customer utility receivables
Property taxes receivable
Due from other funds
Deferred outflows of resources

lncrease (decrease) in current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts payable
Taxes payable
Due to other funds
Unearned revenues
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources

Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents on the Statement of
Net Position to the Statement of Cash Flows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents - ending

See accompanying notes to the basic f¡nanc¡al statements

Enterprise
Fund

Utility
Fund

$ 7,854,977
(3,360,880)

(800,024)

3,694,073

6,234
12,980

477,284
(1,733,423)
(1,236,s25)

(1 34,3e6)
(792,806)
(1 s8,890)

(1,126,092)

46,847
42,461
89,308

1,420,364

3,277,974
$ 4,698,338

lnternal
Service
Funds

$ 905,689

(832,431)
73,258

86,537
25,1 06

111,643

184.901

346,880
$ s31,781

10,571

45,431

$ 3,023,049 $ 17,256

693,1 80
(12,614)

(s7,s3s)
2

(25,e't4)
74,377

(6,s18)
2,588

307
I I,486
8,347

(2s,747)
9,065

671,024 56,002
$ 3,694,073 $ 73,258

I 4,270,626 $ 531,781
427,712

$ 4,698,338 $ 531,781
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EXHIBIT A.IO

THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIAB¡LITIES

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI7

Agency
Funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Totalassets

Liabilities
Payable to others
Due to other funds
Total liabilities

$ 92,517
$ gz,st z

$ 48,340
44,'t77

$ 92,517

See accompanying notes to the basic financiat statements.
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EXHIBIT A-II

Revenues
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Sales taxes
Other taxes
Licenses and permits
Cemetery income
Contracts
Swimming pool

Ambulance service
Administrative charges to other funds
Fines and fees
Grants and donations
lnvestment earnings
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Public works
Cemetery and parks
Subsidies, donations and other
Capitaloutlay
Debt service:

Principal
lnterest charges

Total expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - beginning

THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL. GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI7

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

Variance With
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

$ 1,515,936
630,000

1 ,1 73,1 90
4,726
8,200

53,355
155,840
87,700

675,000
272,759

62,008

3,200
81 120

$1,580,256
522,881

1,173,190
6,467

't6,7't0
71,335

169,877
83,497

690,259
272,759

53,227
100

12,593
35,070

$ 1,595,480
548,455

1j90,411
6,467

16,566
69,025

183,873
83,323

789,901
252,095
121 ,890

100
14,717

172,486

15,224
25,574
17,221

(144)
(2,310)
13,996

(174)
99,642

(20,664)
68,663

2,124
137,416

$

4,723,034 4,688,221 5,044,789 356,568

840,698
3,210,880

677,357
523,082
466,221
204,700

722,283
3,1',t1,239

627,550
518,616
471,638
224,349

786,894
3,052,263

629,418
491,020
518,678
219,425

(64,611)
58,976
(1,868)
27,596

(47,040)
4,924

182,908 187,600 180,893
31,535

6,707
5530 645 31 590

6,136,491 5,894,865 5,910,126

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,413,457) (1,206,644) (865,337)

(1s,261)

341,307

8,000
1,776,657

9,409
1,787,557

11,435
1,787,097

(8,72e)

2,026
(460)

8,729
1,784,657 1,796,966 1,789,803

924,466

(7,163)

371,200 590,322

689,234

334,144

689 234 689 234

$1,060,434 $1,279,556 $1,613,700 $ 334,144

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30,2OI7

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of The City of Vernon, Texas (City) conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) applicable to state and local
governments. GAAP for local governments includes those principles prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which includes all statements and interpretations of the National
Council on Governmental Accounting (NCGA) unless modified by the GASB, and those principles
prescribed by the American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants in the publication entitled Audits of
State and Local Governmental Units. The following is a summary of the more significant policies and
practices used by the City.

A. Reportinq Entity

The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Mayor and four-member City
Commission. The City Commission is the policy-making body of the City and operates under
provisions of state statute.

ln evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered
all potential component units. The decision whether to include a potential component unit in the
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GAAP. Financial Accountability: the
primary government is deemed to be financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the
organization's governing body and (1) it is able to impose its willon that organization or (2) there is
a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or impose specific financial
burdens on the primary government. Additionally, the primary government may be financially
accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government regardless of
whether the organization has a separately elected governing board, a governing board appointed
by a higher level of government or a jointly appointed board. Based on these criteria, the City has
one component unit - the Business Development Corporation of Vernon (BDC).

The BDC is a non-profit corporation formed in 1993 for the purpose of promoting economic
development for the City in order to retain and expand existing business, expand and diversify the
tax base of the City, attract new business and investment to the City, enhance existing job
opportunities, create new job opportunities and improve the quality of life and environment for the
citizens of the City. The Corporation operates under the authority of Vernon's Civil Statutes, Article
5190.6, Section 48 and utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. The BDC is considered to be a
part of the City's financial reporting entity because the City Commission appoints its Board of
Directors, approves its budgets, and exercises final authority over its operations.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and
fund financial statements. The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net
position and the statement of activities) report information on all the non-fiduciary activities of the
City. For the most part, the effects of interfund activity have been removed from these statements.
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

1. SUMMARY OF S|GNÍFICANT ACCOUNTING pOLtCtES (CONT'D.)

The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a functional category (public works, public transportation, etc.) or segment are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly
benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting operational requirements of a particular function or
segment, and 3) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate fund-based financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets, liabilities,
revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category for governmental and enterprise) for the
determination of major funds. The major governmental funds are the General Fund, Debt Service
Fund, and Electric Trust Principal Fund. The major enterprise fund is the Utility Fund.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in
aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. The focus of the fund
financial statements is on the major individual funds. Each presentation provides valuable
information that can be analyzed and compared to enhance the usefulness of the information.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accountinq and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year in which they
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.

Government fund-level financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures are
recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes and franchise fees associated with the current fiscal period are
susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FTNANC¡AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER 30,2017

1. SUMMARY OF STGNTFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES (CONT'D.)

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. All general tax revenues and other
receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are
accounted for in this fund. From the fund are paid general operating costs, fixed charges, and
capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds.

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the annual debt service requirements of the City's
bonded debt.

The Electric Trust Principal Fund is a permanent fund comprised of the proceeds from the sale
of the City's electric utility and accumulated revenues thereon. The proceeds from the sale must
remain in the fund and be invested. Twenty-five percent of the investment revenue of the fund
must remain in the fund and be reinvested. The remaining seventy-five percent of revenue is
transferred to the General Fund where its use is restricted to the acquisition of permanent public
improvements.

The City reports the following major enterprise fund:

The Utility Fund accounts for water, sewer and sanitation services provided to the residents of
the City. Activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in the fund, including,
but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, finance and related debt service.

ln addition, the City reports the following non-major fund types:

Other Governmental Funds include the Special Revenue Funds.

The Special Revenue Funds account for proceeds for specific revenues that are legally
restricted to expenditures for a specified purpose.

The lnternal Service Funds are used to account for revenues and expenses related to services
provided to parties inside the City. These funds facilitate distribution of support costs to the
users of support services on a cost reimbursement basis. Because the principal users of the
internal services are the City's governmental activities, this fund type is included in the
"Governmental Activities" column of the government-wide financial statements.

The Agency Funds are contributions by employees as additional savings and are held in a
purely custodial capacity (assets equal liabilities). Agency funds typically involve only the
receipt, temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private
organizations, or other governments. These funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial
statements. Because their assets are held in a trustee or agent capacity and are not available to
support City programs, these funds are not included in the government-wide statements.

GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of account groups but provides for these
records to be maintained and incorporates the information into the Governmental Activities column
in the government-wide Statement of Net Position.
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FTNANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER 30,2OI7

1. SUMMARY OF STGNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POL¡C//ES (CONT',D.)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the City's Utility Fund are charges to customers for services. Operating
expenses for the Utility Fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and
depreciation on capitalassets. All revenues not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Budqet Policies

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budget reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the City Manager submits to the City Commission a
proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning on the following October 1. The operating
budget, which represents the financial plan for the ensuing yeaî, includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. A public hearing is conducted at which all interested persons' comments concerning the budget
are heard.

3. The budget is then approved by the City Commission through passage of appropriation and tax
levying ordinances prior to October 1.

4. The City Commission must approve any transfer of appropriation balances or portions thereof
from one department to another. The reported budgetary data includes amendments made
during the year.

5. Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles.

6. At the close of each year, any unencumbered appropriation balances (appropriations including
prior year encumbrances less current year expenditures and encumbrances) lapse or revert to
the unassigned fund balanc

E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Eouitv

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and lnvestments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

lnvestments are carried at fair value. Fair value is determined as the price at which two willing
parties would complete an exchange. lnterest earned on investments is recorded in the funds
in which the investments are recorded.
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER 30,2017

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES (CONT',D.)

2. Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 ol the prior year.
Taxes are levied on October I , and do not begin to accrue interest until February I . The City is
permitted by the Municipal Finance Law of the State of Texas to levy taxes (exclusive of those
amounts levied to service long-term debt) up to $2.25 per $100 of assessed valuation. The
City's tax rate for the current year was $.38721 per $100 in assessed valuation. Additionally,
the City levied a tax for debt service of $.17750 per $100 in assessed valuation; therefore, the
total tax rate was $.56471 per $100 in assessed valuation.

An allowance for uncollectible tax receivables within the General and Debt Service Funds are
based upon historical experience in collecting taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are
periodically reviewed and written off, but the City is prohibited from writing off real property
taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas Legislature.

3. lnventories and Prepaid ltems

The City records purchases of supplies as expenditures, utilizing the purchase method of
accounti ng for inventory.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items.

4. Assets Held for Sale

Assets held for sale consists of land and buildings that were purchased or donated to be sold to
third parties. Those assets are carried at the lower of cost or fair market value.

5. CapitalAssets

Capital assets which include land, buildings and improvements, equipment and infrastructure
assets (e.9. roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the government-wide
financial statements. The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the time received.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the following useful lives:

Assets Years

Buildings
lnfrastructure
Land lmprovements
Vehicles
Machinery & Equipment

30-50
30-50
20-30

4-10
5-1 5
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER 30,2OI7

1. SUMMARY OF SIGN|F¡CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONT',D.)

6. Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources

ln addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Certain amounts
related to the City's participation in a pension plan (see Note 10) are reported in this category,
along with deferred losses on bond refunding.

ln addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflow of resources. This separate financial statement element represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has three types of items that qualify
for reporting in this category. Property taxes receivable ($150,812) and ambulance receivables
($302,841) are unavailable and therefore cannot be recognized as revenue in the governmental
funds untilthey are received. There are also certain items related to the City's participation in a
pension plan (see Note 10) that is reported in this category.

7. Compensated Absences

Employees in permanent positions are eligible for vacation benefits, either as time off with pay
or as terminal in cases of separation from City employment. The liabilities for unused vacation
time are recorded in the Enterprise Fund and governmental activities column of the
government-wide statements.

Permanent employees accumulate sick leave indefinitely. However, no terminal pay is
authorized for unused sick leave for terminating employees.

8. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other obligations for general government purposes are recorded in the
government-wide statement of net position. Long-term debt and other obligations financed by
the Utility Fund are reported as liabilities in that fund.

For the government-wide financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as losses
from refinancing debt, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method in the government-wide financial statements. Bonds payable are reported net of
the applicable bond premium or discount. lssuance costs are expended when incurred. ln the
governmental fund-level financial statements, bond proceeds are reported as another financing
source. Bond premiums and discounts in governmental funds are also recognized currently as
other financing sources or uses. lssuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER 30,2OI7

1. SUMMARY OF SÍGN|FICANT ACCOUNTTNG POL¡C//ES (CONT'D.)

9. Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to
remain intact (such as notes receivable or principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balance - represents amounts that are constrained by external parties,
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose
because of a formal action by the City Commission. Committed amounts cannot be used for
any other purpose unless the governing board removes those constraints by taking the same
type of formal action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other purposes with
appropriate due process by the governing board. Commitments are typically done through
adoption and amendment of the budget. Committed fund balance amounts differ from restricted
balances in that the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional
provisions, or enabling legislation.

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the City intends to use for a specific
purpose, but that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. lntent may
be stipulated by the governing board or by an official or body to which the governing board
delegates the authority. Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special
revenue, capital projects, debt service or permanent fund are assigned for purposes in
accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund's primary purpose. Assignments
within the General Fund convey that the intended use of those amounts is for a specific
purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the City itself.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be
spent for any purpose. Only the General Fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance.
Other governmental funds might report a negative balance in this classification because of
overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or
assigned.

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first.

When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances
are available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds.

10. Transactions Between Funds

Outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual
balances between governmental activities and business{ype activities are reported in the
government-wide statements as "internal balances." Nonrecurring or non-routine transfers of
equity between funds are accounted for as transfers.
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FTNANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI7

1. SUMMARY OF STGNTFICANT ACCOUNT//No pOLtCtES (CONT'D.)

11. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health
benefits; and other claims of various natures. The City participates in the Texas Municipal
League lntergovernmental Risk Pool (TML). TML is a self-funded pool operating as a common
risk management and insurance program. The agreement for the formation of TML provides
that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through
commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however each category of
coverage has its own level of reinsurance. There were no significant reductions in commercial
insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

12. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of
management's estimates. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

13. Pension Plan

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions
to/deductions from TMRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported to TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period
that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due.
Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. lnvestments are reported at fair value.

2. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Finance-Related Leqal and Contractual Provisions

ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures", a
violation of finance-related legal and contractual provisions is reported below, along with the action
taken to address the violation.

For the year ended September 30, 2017, the City overexpended the General Fund in two
functional areas and in total (see Exhibit A-1 1). The City will be more diligent in monitoring its
actual expenditures compared to the City's adopted budget in future years.

B. Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Position of lndividual Funds

As of September 30, 2017, there were no funds with a deficit fund balance or deficit net position
balance.

a
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER 30,2OI7

3. DEPOS'TS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Deoosits

All of the City's demand and time depository accounts are held in local banking institutions. At
September 30,2017, the carrying amount of the City's deposits (cash and interest-bearing savings
accounts included in temporary investments) was $10,197,543 and the bank balance was
$10,481,718, including fiduciary accounts. The City's cash deposits at September 30, 2017, and
during the year ended September 30,2017 , were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged
collateral held by the City's agent bank in the City's name.

All of the BDC's demand and time depository accounts are held in local banking institutions. At
September 30, 2017, the carrying amount of the Corporation's deposits (cash, certificates of
deposit, and interest-bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $1,075,067
and the bank balance was $1,075,067. The Corporation's cash deposits at September 30,2017,
and during the year ended September 30,2017, were entirely covered by FDIC insurance.

B. lnvestments

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds lnvestment Act (Act) to
adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written; primarily
emphasize safety of principal and liquidity; address investment diversification, yield, maturity and
the quality and capability of investment management; include a list of the types of authorized
investments in which the investing entity's funds may be invested; and the maximum allowable
stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the entity.

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted
as a part of the audit of the financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices,
management reports, and establishment of appropriate policies, the City adhered to the
requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the City were in accordance with local
policies.

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the City. These include, with
certain restrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of
Texas, (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings
accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investment
pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and (10) common trust funds.

The City's investments at September 30,2017 are shown below and are included in the Cash and
cash equivalents caption on Exhibit A-1:

lnvestment or lnvestment Tvpe

Money market and savings accounts

Weighted
Maturity
lDavs)

Fair
Value

1
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THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

3. DEPOSTTS AND TNVESTMENTS (CONT',D.)

The BDC's investments at September 30,2017 are shown below:

lnvestment or lnvestment Tvpe

Weighted
Maturity
lDavs)

Fair
Value

Money market accounts $402.166

The City categorizes its fair value measurements with the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. lnvestments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per
share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient are not classified in the fair value hierarchy below.
ln instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value
hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the valuation. The City's assessment of the significance of particular inputs to
these fair value measurements requires judgement and considers factors specific to each asset or
liability.

C. Analysis of Specific Deposit and lnvestment Risks

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the City was exposed to the
following specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

1. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to
give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the City was not significantly exposed to credit risk.

2. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance
and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's
trust department or agent but not in the City's name.

lnvestment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not
registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the
counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the City's name.

At year end, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

3. Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single
issuer. At year end, the City was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

1
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3. DEPOSTIS AND TNVESTMENTS (CONT'D.)

4. lnterest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. At year end, the City was not exposed to interest rate risk.

5. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year
end, the City was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables and related allowances for uncollectibles consisted of the following items on September
30,2017:

General Fund:
Ambulance
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise fees
Other

Debt Service Fund:
Property taxes

Other Governmental Funds
Hotel occupancy taxes
Grants

Utility Fund:
Customers
Property taxes

Gross
Receivable

91,182,752
183,349
307,293

57,242
90,522

37,713

32,353
30,000

759,584
1,918

Allowance

$795,791
60,965

2,538

51,968
1,909

Net
Receivable

$386,961
122,384
307,293

57,242
90,522

35,175

32,353
30,000

707,616
I

The City expects to collect substantially all of the net receivables within one year, except for ambulance
fees and property taxes. The City anticipates collecting $150,000 of the ambulance fees and $60,000
of the property tax receivable within one year, which is similar to the current year.
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended September 30,2017 was as follows

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
lnfrastructure
Equipment, furniture, fixtures, etc.
Vehicles
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements
lnfrastructure
Equipment, furniture, fixtures, etc.
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Beginning
Balances

$ 981,029

Beginning
Balances

$ 721,690

lncreases

8,200

55,759
57,778

128,362
1 10,546
352.445

L124.820\

lncreases

Decreases

$-

41,886
107.594
149.480

280

Ending
Balances

s 981,029

Ending
Balances

$ 721,690

12,012,20',1
1,065,933

3',t6.292
13.394.426
16,568,436

Governmentalactivities capitalassets, net $6J31É54 $124ß29\ $____28O $6.306J!1

Depreciation expense was charged to departments as follows:

General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Cemetery and Parks

28,189,696
1,329,467

316.496
29,835,659

11,376,643
1,025,117

306,679
12.708.439
17.127.220

635,558
48,009

9.613
693, I 80

(_558J84)

$ 15,961
210,592
75,354
50.538

$352*1145

Decreases

$-

7,193

7,1 93

7,193

7.193

Business-type activities

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture, fìxtures, etc.
Vehicles
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture, fixtures, etc.
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capitalassets, net û7eß-øO 655!-Z&Ð $________- $11290J26
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5. CAPTTALASSETS(CONT',D.)

Depreciation expense was charged to departments as follows:

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Sanitation

Business Development Corporation
Beginning
Balances

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Website development (in progress)

Total capital assets not being depreciated

lncreases

$-

s415,942
273j08

4130

$693J30

Decreases

$

Ending
Balances

$ 99,092
11.244

110,336

166,441
15.117

181 ,558
401,660

11,859 195,023

11,859 195,023

11,847
377

12.224
(____ 365) 195,023

$195-023

$ 99,092
11.244

110,336

384,716
15,338

400,054

$31_6-608

Short{erm borrowings
Short{erm borrowings
Short{erm borrowings
Short-term borrowings
Shortterm borrowings
Short{erm borrowings
Short{erm borrowings

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture, fixtures, etc.
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture, fixtures, etc.
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

BDC capital assets, net

6. INTERFUND BALANCES A'VD ACTIVITY

A. Due To and From Other Funds

General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Other Governmental Funds
Enterprise Fund
Enterprise Fund

$511*996 ($__-365)

Other Governmental Funds
Enterprise Fund
lnternal Service Funds
Agency Fund
Enterprise Fund
General Fund
lnternal Service Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at September 30,2017 cons¡sted of the following:

Due to Fund Due Fund Amount Puroose

$ 37,278
2,924

19,545
44,177

1,069
3,768

25,886

Total

All amounts are scheduled to be repaid within one year
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6. INTERFUND BALANCES A'VD ACTtVtTy (CONT',D.)

B. Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfers to and from other funds at September 30,2017 consisted of the following:

Transfers To Transfers From Amount Reason

General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Enterprise Fund
Enterprise Fund

Total

C. Lono-term Borrowing

Electric Trust Principal
Other Governmental Funds
Enterprise Fund
General Fund
Debt Service Fund

s 23,274
30,400

"t,733,423
8,729

468,555

$22e4387

lnterest transfer
Park contributions
Payment in lieu of taxes
Excess transfer refund
Debt service payments

Total

Long-term borrowing consists of the following

The Utility Fund has a note payable to the Employee Benefit Trust Fund,
which is part of the City's lnternal Service Fund. The note is due in monthly
payments of $8,943 of principal and interest al2.50o/o per annum beginning
October 31,2015 through October 31,2025. The note is unsecured.

Related accrued interest at September 30,2017

Total interfund long-term borrowings at September 30,2017

The debt service requirements of the interfund long-term borrowing is as follows:

Year Ended September 30.
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2026

Principal
$ 88,726

90,970
93,270
95,629
98,047

317,484

lnterest
$ 18,591

16,347
14,047
11,688
9,270

12.698

$107,317
107,317
107,317
107,317
107,317
330,1 82

Totals vß4J2Ê $__82-e!_1 $866J62

This interfund borrowing is reported in the fund level financial statements as a note receivable and
accrued interest income in the lnternal Service Fund and as long{erm debt and accrued interest
payable in the Utility Fund. However, it is netted into the internal balance captions in the
government-wide Statement of Net Position at September 30,2017.
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7. LONG.TERMOBLIGATIONS

A. Lonq-term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilitles. Changes in long-term obligations
for the period ended September 30,2017 are as follows:

Amount

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance lncreases Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental Activities:

Bonds payable

Bond premiums

Capital leases

Notes payable

Compensated absences *

Total governmental activities

$ 20,257$

Business-tvpe Activities:

Bonds payable

Bond premiums

Capital leases

Notes payable

Compensated absences *

Total business-type activities

$l,025,000
1 30,1 62

460,566

504,992

282.526

$2A03246

$5,555,000

490,624

8,548

1 80,1 60

88,370

s6'322J92

2'17,552

92j1-ã52

45,649

$_45-@19

$ 18,906

6,671

139,400

41,493

193,'102

$399-522

$661,094

26,713

8,548

36,627

37.302

vfi2aL

$1,006,094

123,491

321 ,1 66

463,499

306,976

92221226

32,220

444,2',12

245.580

s7a2269

$684,743

37,068

58,030

fiß-a47

$

Business Development Corporation

Notes payable $1-602J29 $- Et46Zr0 $!155p8ft $15r-062

* - Other long-term liabilities

The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows:

Liability Activitv Tvpe Fund

$4,893,906

463,911

143,533

96.7',t7

$5J98t002

General Fund
Enterprise Fund

Compensated absences
Compensated absences

Governmental
Business-type
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B. Outstandinq Bonds

Bonds payable at September 30, 2017, including net unamortized premiums on the bonds, are
comprised of the following:

Descriotion

Tax and Waterworks and
Sewer System Surplus
Revenue Cert¡f¡cates of
Obligation, Ser¡es 2009
Plus bond premium

General Obligation
Refunding Bonds,
Series 2010

General Obligation
Refunding Bonds,
Series 2012
Plus bond premium

General Obligation
Refunding Bonds,
Series 2016
Plus bond prem¡um

$3,175,000 3.00% 3t15t2019 $85,000 $ 170,000 $

3,050,000

2,685

900,000

Bonds
Authorized

1,850,000

3,795,000

Range of
lnterest
Rates

Final
Maturity

Date

Annual
Serial

Pavments

$140,000 to
$385,000

$160,000 to
$205,000

$70,000 to
$200,000

Bonds
Outstanding
atgl30l17

1 ,1 05,000

70,500

3,725,000

514.217

8ÂA8Z¿02

Governmental
Activities

1,006,094

123,491

$l-129J85

Business-
Type

Activities

$ 170,000

2,685

900,000

1,105,000

70,500

2,718,906

390.726

$5.?57*e1Z

2.00o/o lo 311512020
3.00%

2.00o/o lo 311512023
3.00o/o

2.00o/o to 311512036
4.O0o/o

Total all bonds

C. Debt Service Requirements on Lonq-Term Bonds

Debt service requ¡rements on long-term bonds at September 30, 2017 are as follows:

Governmental Activities
Year Ending September 30. Principal lnterest Total

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2036
Totals

$ 20,257
18,906
43,215
45,916
60,771

297,101
302,504
217.424

$l-006-091

$ 36,584
36,192
35,355
34,018
32,418

132,770
71,359
17.907

$396-603

$ 56,841
55,098
78,570
79,934
93,1 89

429,871
373,863
235,331

ttlro2-692
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Year Endinq September 30, Principal lnterest
¡siness-tvne

T

D. Capital Lease

The commitment under the capitalized lease agreement for equipment provides for minimum future

lease payments as of September 30,2017 as follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2036
Totals

Year Endinq September 30,

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2026
Total minimum lease PaYments
Less amount representing interest

Present value of minimum lease payments

The effective interest rate on the capital lease is 3.95%

Following is a summary of property held subject to capital lease:

Vehicle
Less accumulated dePreciation
Net

$ 684,743
691,094
436,785
309,084
359,229

1,007,899
817,496
587,576

$4j93.906

$ 154,028
134,346
1 17,895
106,707
96,682

361,880
192,841
48,393

$1212J12

$ 838,771
825,440
554,680
415,791
455,911

1,369,779
1,010,337

635,969
$6Jrc6*0æ

Governmental
Activities

$ 40,361
40,361
40,361
40,361
40,951

163.807
366,202

( 45,036)

$3ZLl_60

Governmental
Activities
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The City has notes payable at September 30,2017 as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Note payable to the Waggoner National Bank to finance the balance of
the aquatics center. The note was due in February 2019 with accrued
interest al4.25o/o and was unsecured. However, the note was paid in
full in October 2017; therefore, the full amount is reported as current.

Note payable to the Bank of the West to finance the purchase of an
ambulance. The note is due in monthly principal payments of $2,166
plus interest at 2.74% per annum through July 1 , 2019. The note is
secured by the ambulance.

Total governmental activities

Business-tvoe Activities:
Note payable to the Bank of the West to finance various equipment
purchases. The note is due in monthly payments of $666 of principal
and interest at2.99o/o per annum through September 15,2018. The note
is secured by a mosquito sprayer, computer hardware and software, and
14 portable radio systems.

Note payable to the Waggoner National Bank to finance the water
exploration. The note is due in annual principal payments of $20,000
plus interest at 4.00o/o per annum in September 2017 with the balance of
the principal and accrued interest due in September 2019. The note is
unsecured.

Note payable to the Bank of the West to finance various equipment
purchases. The note is due in monthly payments of $795 of principal
and interest at 2.74% per annum through July 1 , 2019. The note is
secured by fire SCBA gear and computer software and accessories.

Total busi ness-type activities

Total all notes payable

$41 9, I 07

44,392

463,499

7,876

119,376

16.281

143,533

$602*032

The debt service requirements on the notes payable at September 30, 2017 are as follows

Governmental Activities
Year Endinq September 30, Princioal lnterest Total

2018
2019
Totals

$ 2,010
272

s_2282
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Business-tvoe Activities
Year Endino September 30, Princioal lnterest Total

2018 $37,084 $5,330 $42,414
2019 106,449 4.112 110,561
Totals $143.533 g_9A42 $152p75

F. Combined Debt Service Requirements

Debt service requirements on all long-term debt at September 30,2017 are as follows:

Governmental Activities
Year Endinq September 30, Princioal lnterest Total

Year Endinq September 30.
Business-tvpe Activities

Princioal lnterest Total

20't8
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2036
Totals

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2036
Totals

$ 496,607
71,312
77,089
80,633
96,025

449j65
302,504
217.424

$rJ90J59

$ 38,594
36,464
35,355
34,018
32,418

132,770
71,359
17.907

$398-885

$ 535,201
107,776
112,444
114,651
128,443
581,935
373,863
235.331

$2;189.644

$ 721,827
797,543
436,785
309,084
359,229

1,007,899
817,496
587.576

$5*037éÍ19

$ 159,358
138,458
117,895
106,707
96,682

361,880
192,84',1

48,393
$1222214

$ 881,185
936,001
554,680
415,791
455,911

1,369,779
1 ,010,337

635.969

$6259-ô53

G. Advance Refundinqs of Debt

As of September 30, 2017, outstanding balances of bond issues that have been refunded and
defeased in-substance by placing existing assets and the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable
trust to provide for all future debt service payments are $2,760,000 of the Tax and Waterworks and
Sewer System Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2009. The bonds are scheduled to be
called and paid in full on March 15,2019.
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H. Continuinq Disclosure

The City has entered into a continuing disclosure undertaking to provide Annual Reports and
Material Event Notices to the State lnformation Depository of Texas, which is the Municipal
Advisory Council. This information is required under SEC Rule l5c2-12 to enable investors to
analyze the financial condition and operations of the City.

l. BDC Debt

The BDC has notes payable outstanding at September 30,2017 as follows

The note payable to the Texas Leverage Fund (#1) is payable in monthly
installments of $6,215 including interest at3.25o/o per annum and is secured by
sales tax receipts collected by BDC. The note matures in January 2025. $ 498,060

The note payable to the Texas Leverage Fund (#2) is payable in monthly
installments of $10,533 including interest at3.25o/o per annum and is secured
by sales tax receipts collected by BDC. The note matures in June 2026. 957.928

Total El_.455J88

The debt service requirements on the notes payable at September 30, 2017 are as follows:

BDC Pavable
Year Endinq September 30, Princioal lnterest Total

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2026
Totals

$ 151,062
157,609
164,439
171,566
179,001
632,311

tlrt55*9l18

$ 58,959
52,413
45,582
38,456
31,021
46,826

w325A

$ 210,021
210,022
210,021
210,022
210,022
679,137

$1f,2925

8. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES

A portion of the City's net position and funds have restrictions and commitments. The details to each
are as follows:
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Net Position: Primary Government

Restricted for:
Debt service
Public improvements:

Expendable
Nonexpendable

Perpetual care:
Nonexpendable

Municipal court building security
Municipal court technology
Public, education, and

government access
Grants
Public safety
Parks and aquatics center
Christmas decorations
Tourism

Total restricted net position

Fund Balances

Restricted for:

Public improvements

Public, education, and
government access

Debt service

Municipal court building security
Municipal court technology
Grants

Public safety

Parks and aquatics center
Christmas decorations

Tourism

Perpetual care

Total restricted fund balance

Committed for:

Main Street

$ 241,538 $1,030,867 $1,272,405 $

Governmental
Activities

73,714
2,861,641

227,336
25,627
23,374

Business-type
Activities Total

73,714
2,861,641

227,336
25,627
23,374

Component
Unit

78,282
220

24,204
77,743

8,928
266,839

78,282
220

24,204
77,743

8,928
266.839

$3-90tu146 $l_-030¿62 $4-"10313

Funds

Debt

Service

Fund

$

241,538

Electric

Trust
Princioal

Other
Governmental

25,627

23,374
220

24,204
77,743

8,928

266,839

227,336

General

$ 73,714

78,282

Total

$2,935,355$2,861,641 $

78,282
241,538

25,627

23,374
220

24,204
77,743

8,928

266,839

227.336

$ 74.088 $- $__t4_08ft

42



9.

FYE September 30, 2016

FYE September 3O,2017

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENS'ON PLAN

s227-992 ($l_Zt-668)
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SELF. F U N D ED WO RKERS COM P ENSA r/O'V

During thefiscal yearended September 30, 1992, the City began a self-insurance program forworkers

compénsation. T-he Workers Compensation Fund, an internal service fund, was established for this

program. Under prior arrangements, this program was administered by the Texas Municipal League'

btoþ-toss insurañce is carried to cover claims in excess of $250,000 in the aggregate. The City

terminated the self-insurance program and obtained commercial coverage after that point during the

year ended September 30, 2016. During the fiscal year ended September 30,2017, the Workers

bompensation 
'Fund 

incurred no claims, stop-loss insurance premiums, and administrative costs.

During the same period, the Fund did not receive any charges and fees from the General Fund, the

Enterþrise Fund or the BDC. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage to date.

As of September 30, 2017, the reserve was $23,314. Changes in the claims liability amounts in the

fiscalyears ended September 30, 2016 and 2017 were:

Beginning
of Year
Liabilitv

Current Year
Claims and
Changes in
Estimates

Claims and
Expenses Paid

$50J45

$ 27e

Balance at
Year End

s 279

A. Plan Description

The City participates as one of 880 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined

benefit þension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an

agency created'by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle

C, fi¡e 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement

system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general

administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the

Governor, with the advicè and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally

dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under

Se'ct¡on 401(a) of the lnternal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive

annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.

B. Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the City

Councii, within the options available in the governing state statutes of TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's contributions, with interest,

and the City-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members

may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payment options. Members may also

choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal

to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75o/o of the member's deposits and

interest.
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At the December 31,2016 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

lnactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
lnactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

C. Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5o/o, 6%, or 7o/o of employee gross
earnings, and the participating city matching percentages are either 100%, 150o/o, or 200o/o, both as
adopted by the governing body of the participating city. Under the state law governing TMRS, the
contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal
(EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to
finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees of the City were required to contribute 7o/o of their annual gross earnings during the
fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City were 11.95o/o and '12.50% in calendar years 2016 and
2017, respectively. The City's contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2017 were
$440,815, and were equalto the required contributions.

D. Net Pension Liabilitv

The City's Net Position Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31 , 2016 and the Total
Pension Liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The Total Pension Liability in the December 3l ,2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

lnflation 2.5o/o pet leat
Overall payrollgrowth 3.5% to 10.5To, including inflation
lnvestment rate of return 6.75Yo, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members,
retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality
Table, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. Based on the size
of the City, rates are multiplied by a factor of 85.0%. The rates are projected on a fully generational
basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the
gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment is used with
male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3-year setforward for
both males and females. ln addition, a 3o/o minimum mortality rate is applied to reflect the
impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.

68
80
88
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Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31,2016 valuation were based on the results of
actuarial experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period December 31,2010
through December 31,2014. Healthy post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates
were updated based on a Mortality Experience lnvestigation Study covering 2009 through 2011,
and dated December 31,2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31,2013
valuation, along with a change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptions
are reviewed annually. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both
capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short{erm and long-
term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long{erm expected rate of return by
weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. ln determining their best estimate of a recommended investment return
assumption under the various alternative asset allocation portfolios, TMRS focused on the area
between (l) arithmetic mean (aggressive) without an adjustment for time (conservative) and (2) the
geometric mean (conservative) with an adjustment for time (aggressive). The target allocation and
best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class in fiscal year 2017 are summarized
in the following table:

Asset Class

Domestic Equity
lnternational Equity
Core Fixed lncome
Non-Core Fixed lncome
Real Return
Real Estate
Absolute Return
Private Equity

Tarqet Allocation
Long-Term Expected Real
Rate of Return (Arithmetic)

4.55%
6.35%
1.00%
4.15%
4.15%
4.75%
4.00%
7.75%

17.5To
17.5o/o

10.ÙYo

20.0%
10.0%
10.0%
10.0%

5.0o/o

Total 100.0%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will
be made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary
Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total
Pension Liability.
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Changes in Net Pension Liability / (Asset)

Balances as of December 31, 2015

Changes for the year:

Service cost

lnterest on total pension liability

Change in benefit terms

Difference between expected and actual

expenence

Change in assumptions

Contributions - employer

Contributions - employee

Net investment income

Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions

Administrative expense

Other changes

Balances as of December 31, 2016

$20,785,92r $16,917,941 $3,867,980

lncrease lDecrease)

$21J83JA8

Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
6.75o/o, as well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is I percentage point lower (5.75%) or 1 percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current
rate.

Total Pension
Liability

(a)

522,433

1,382,533

( 376,813)

( 1,130,326)

Fiduciary Net
Position

426,631

255,558

1J42s44

Net Pension
Liability / (Asset)

(a) - (b)

522,433

1,382,533

( 376,813)

( 426,631)

( 255,558)

( 1,142,644)

12,913

696

$3*5&1909

1o/o

lncrease
7.75o/o

1Yo

Decrease
5.75o/o

Current
Discount Rate

6.7íYo

Net pension liability $Ê-W204 $3J84p09 tl18t!,1_23

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately
issued TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained atvrvrw.tmrs.com.
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E. Pension Exoense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources

For the year ended September 30, 2017 , the City recognized pension expense of $579,372.

At September 30, 2017, Ihe City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

s470,216

$479213.

$333,316 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Differences between expected and actual experience

Differences in assumption changes

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date

Total

Year Ended December 31:
2017
2018
2019
2020

Deferred
Outflows

of Resources

$135,965
224,531
196,079

( 135)

Deferred
lnflows

of Resources

Total s556.440

11. HEALTH CARE COVERAGE

On March 11, 1992, the City began a self-insurance medical program through establishment of the
Employee Benefits Trust Fund, an internal service fund. A contract is in effect with Blue Cross Blue
Shield of Texas for the administration of the fund. Stop-loss insurance coverage is carried under which
the Employee Benefits Trust Fund pays the first $55,000 of medical expenses per covered person up to
an aggregate amount of $767,807 per year. The insurance provider pays amounts in excess of the
aforementioned. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage as of September
30,2017. Group life insurance premiums are also paid by the Employee Benefits Trust Fund. During
the fiscal year ended September 30,2017, $888,433 was expended for health benefits, insurance
premiums and administrative costs. Charges and fees for the same period amounted to $905,689,
including $515,500 from the General Fund, $171,150 from the Enterprise Fund, $202,282 from
employee payroll deductions, $7,328 from the BDC, and $9,429 from terminated employees (COBRA).
These amounts were recorded as current expenditures in the charged funds and component unit.
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11. HEALTH CARE COVERAGE (CONT',D.)

Both the General and Enterprise Funds and the BDC participate in the self-insurance program and
make payments to the internal service fund based on estimates of the amounts needed to pay current
and prior year claims and other expenses, and to establish a reserve for catastrophic losses. The
estimates are derived from the City's historical cost experience. At September 30,2017, the reserve
was $1,148,190.

The claims liability of $105,361 is based on the requirements of GASB Statement Number l0 which
requires that a liability for claims be reported if information available prior to the issuance of the financial
statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Changes in the claims liability amounts in the fiscal years ended September 30, 2016 and 2017 were:

Beginning
of Year
Liability

Current Year
Claims and
Changes in
Estimates

$8t2Jß4

s888,433

Claims and
Exoenses Paid

$855273

$8ZZ*ã83

Balance at
Year End

$3r.ãr1

$l-05361

FYE September 30,2016 $11-62A

FYE September 30,2017 $eLí1

1 2. COMMITMEA'TS AA/D CONTITVGE'VC'ES

A. Litiqation

No reportable litigation was pending against the City at September 30,2017

B. Federal and State Grants - Compliance Audits

The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the
grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and
adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the
rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the
collectability of any related receivable may be impaired. ln the opinion of the City, there are no
significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations governing the
respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying basic financial
statements for such contingencies.

13. CTOSURE AND POSTCTOSURE CARE COST

A 1991 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) ruling, "Solid Waste Facility Criteria", established
closure requirements for municipal solid waste landfills. The EPA ruling also imposes thirty-year
postclosure care requirements for landfills accepting solid waste afterApril 9, 1994. As a result, landfill
operators are required to perform certain closing functions and postclosure monitoring and
maintenance functions. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued its Statement
Number 18 to establish accounting principles for postclosure monitoring and maintenance costs
resulting from the EPA ruling.
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13. CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSr GONT'.D.)

The City of Vernon, Texas operated a municipal solid waste landfill which stopped accepting solid
waste on April 1, 1994. Final cover and capping was completed shortly thereafter, using existing
personnel and equipment. Because the landfíll was closed prior to April 9, 1994, the City is exempted
from the postclosure and maintenance and monitoring requirements of the EPA ruling. Accordingly,
these financial statements include no provision for related costs contemplated by GASB Statement
Number 18.

14. TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMEIVTS

The City has approved two tax abatement agreements. The first agreement is dated December 21,
2011 with Rhodia, lnc. and the second with Vernon Real Estate LLC dated May 7,2013. Both
agreements were issued pursuant to the Section 380.001 of the Texas Local Government Code relative
to economic development of the City by (a) providing an incentive for already established businesses to
expand, modernize, and (b) providing incentive to attract businesses that might not relocate to the
community othenrvise. ln both cases, the agreements were to allow established businesses to expand
and modernize.

The Rhodia agreement is a ten-year abatement of its taxable mineral interest lor 100o/o the first four
years, 80o/o year five, 60% year six, 40o/o lear seven, 30o/o leat eight, 20o/o year nine, and 10o/o year ten.
This is the fourth year of the agreement and the total value loss was $9,865,680. The reduction in M&O
taxes was $38,201 and l&S taxes was $17,512.

The Vernon Real Estate LLC agreement is a five-year abatement of taxable real and personal property
for 100% the first year, 80% year two, 600/o lear three, 40% year four, and 20% year five. This is the
second year of the agreement and the total value loss was $3,355,908. The reduction in M&O taxes
was $12,994 and l&S taxes was $5,957.

Both agreements have early termination/default clauses that without the consent of the City or in the
event that the company or its successor-in-interest fails to comply in any material respect with the terms
of the agreement or to meet any material obligation under the agreement, then the Cíty shall be entitled
to the recapture of all ad valorem tax revenue lost as a result of the agreement together with the
payment of 10o/o interest on that recaptured ad valorem tax revenue.
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EXHIBIT B-I

Total Pension Liability
Service cost
lnterest on total pension liability
Changes of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments/refunds of contributions

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability, beginning
Total pension liability, ending (a)

Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment ¡ncome
Benefit payments/refunds of contributions
Administrative expenses
Other

Net change in fiduciary net position
Fiduciary net position, beginning
Fiduciary net position, ending (b)

Net pension liability, ending = (a) - (b)

Fiduciary net position as a % of total pension liability

Covered employee payroll

Net pension liability as a % of covered payroll

THE CITY OF VERNON, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF GHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2014 2015 2016

$ 628,498
1,529,732

(672,755)

(1,264.777\

$ 572,998
1,358,771

(2,689,621) (1)

(206,925)
514,583

(1,1s6,038)

522,433
1,382,533

(376,813)

(1, I 30,326)

$

220,698

22,171,455
$22,392,153

(1,606,232)

22,392,153
$20,785,921

397,827

20,785,921
$21,183,748

$ 734,220
286,327
939,988

(1,264,777)
(s,814)

(807)

687,295
261,472
25,252

(1,1 56,038)
(15,383)

(760)

$ 426,631
255,558

1,142,644
(1 ,1 30,326)

(12,e13)
(6s6)

$

685,1 37
16,430,966

$17,116,103

$ 5,276,050

(1s8,162)
17 11 103

680,898
16,917,941

$ 17,598,839

$ 3,867,980 $ 909

76 44o/o 81.39%

$ 382 $ 3,735,319

103.s5%128.99o/o

83.08%

$ 3,650,828

98.19%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
recalculations of prior years are not required, and if prior years are not reported in accordance with
the standards of GASB 67/68, they should not be shown here. Therefore, we have shown only years
for which the new GASB statements have been prepared.

(1)The City decreased the repeating COLA fromTO%o to 30% and decreased the repeating USC
Írom 100%o to 75% effective Janaury 1 , 2015.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2015

g 712,711

12 711

$ 494,331

(494,331)

EXHIBIT B-2

20172016

Actuarial determined contribution

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution

Contribution deficiency

Covered employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll

$-$

$ 3,735,319 $ 3,650,828 $ 3,572,079

19.08o/o 13.54% 12.34%

Valuation Date:
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 and become effective in
January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Gontribution Rates:
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 29 years

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 1 S% soft corridor

lnflation 2.50o/o

Salary lncreases 3.50% to 1}.50o/o including inflation

lnvestment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's
plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to
an expenence study ofthe period2010-2014

Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB

Other lnformation:

Notes There were no benefit changes during the year

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years However,
recalculations of prior years are not required, and if prior years are not reported in accordance with the
standards of GASB 67/68, they should not be shown here. Therefore, we have shown only years for
which the new GASB statements have been prepared

The data on this schedule is based on the City's fiscal year-end, not the valuation/measurement data as
provided in other schedules of this report.
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